ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 28, 2007
1:36 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senat or John Cowdery

Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

Overvi ew. Ofice of Children’s Services |Inprovenents and
Chal | enges

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record.
W TNESS REQ STER

Kar | een Jackson, Comm ssi oner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

Tanmy Sandoval , Deputy Comm ssi oner

Ofice of Children’s Services (OCS)

Departnment of Health and Soci al Services (DHSS)
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BETTYE DAVIS called the Senate Health, Education and
Social Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:36:18
PM Present at the call to order were Senators Thomas, Cowdery,
El ton, Dyson, and Chair Davis.

PRESENTATI ON:  OCS SYSTEM | MPROVEMENTS AND CHALLENGES

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2007



CHAI R BETTYE DAVI S announced the presentation of the OCS system
i nprovenent and chal | enges.

KARLEEN JACKSON, Conmm ssioner for the Departnment of Health and
Social Services (DHSS), introduced herself and Tammy Sandoval,
and said that she would give a briefing of the history of the
review, and M. Sandoval would talk about the results of the
revi ew.

She said that over a four-year period ending in 2005, there were
four different leaders of the Ofice of Children s Services
(OCS) and a certain period of instability. In 2005 Ms. Sandova
took over the agency; since then stability has inproved. The
office decided to plan for the future and examne its
relationship with its citizen review panel. The OCS subsequently
chose to bring in a consultant, from a group that provides
technical assistance for all 50 states, to look at the OCS s
organi zation, its conmmunity involvenent, and policy procedure
and training. The review was conpleted in Novenber 2006, at
which point the Departnent of Law advised on how to best
dissem nate the information. The report contains a substanti al
amount of information, and has been nade available to various
branches of the governnent; it wll help make a plan for
i nprovenent for the OCS. Social workers have one of the hardest
jobs in the state of Al aska.

1: 43: 43 PM

TAMW SANDOVAL, Deputy Conm ssioner of the OCS, said that the
office had the contractor |ook at four different areas of
interest in the OCS. There was an online enployee norale survey
conduct ed, focus groups were consulted, and i ndividual
i nterviews took place.

She said that the things found to be in nost need of inprovenent
are enployee inclusion in decision making, trust, and openness
and communication. On the other hand, nobst staffers say that
their job notivation is high, they receive good job support, and
want to perform well. QO her positive findings included
forthrightness in participation, nutual support within offices,
and support of the new work assessnent nodel. Communication is,
however, inconsistent in various arnms of the OCS, and decision
maki ng and policy are not transparent enough. Problem enpl oyees
are not sufficiently dealt with and training is inadequate,
salaries are too |low, and degree requirenments are too high.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 28, 2007



She continued to list recomendations from the surveyed
enpl oyees, and issues the OCS is going to address and is
currently addr essi ng: i npr ovenent in conmmuni cati on, t he
continuation of +the survey process, safety assessnent, and
retention and recruitnent. The resolution of even mnor issues
is also necessary to help workers in the OCS have snoother
wor kdays.

1: 52: 29 PM

She explained that the second report deals wth conmmunity
rel ati onships, which are often the nost visible elenents of the
OCS. Interviews were conducted with statew de agency heads and
with clients around the nore populous areas of the state. The
report indicates that the work of the OCS is generally
positively viewed at the regional and statewide |evels. Line
staffers, however, are often slow to return phone calls to
clients; the office's work in general is appreciated, but sone
el ements of service delivery nust be inproved.

She said that several key agency heads expressed concern over
the Mat-Su regional offices and their lack of cooperation with
comunity agencies. The OCS's work with tribal comunities has
i mproved, but could still do so further. Recomendations
included retention of staff, inprovenent of the public inmage,
and inprovenent of community relations; supervisors are key to
this.

She said that action taken by the OCS so far has included
m ssives sent out to the statewde staff, annual surveys,
i nproved confidentiality measures within the departnent, and a
FAQ forum on the OCS website. It has worked extensively on
inmproving the option of placing Al aska Native children in
tribally-licensed foster hones as well.

2:02: 09 PM

She said that the third report examned policy and procedure
t hroughout the entire abuse or neglect case review process;
clarity of evaluation and the witten elements of OCS reports
were eval uated. The evaluation found that policy can be witten
in confusing ways, witten reports were not always clear, and
there were too many assunptions in policy that would be unclear
for a new worker due to conplexity, obscurity, or other factors.

She continued to explain the faults found within OCS policy by
the report, including ineffectual guidance and direction, non-

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2007



policy requirenents, out-of-date wording, and the need for a
phi | osophi cal base for the OCS.

2:08:29 PM

She said that the report recommends rewiting the policy rather
than correcting it, and establish a nethod for review ng policy
drafts to be sure that they neet criteria and effectively
provide direction, regulation and support. Necessary correction

of these faults wll take a lot of tinme and a high level of
effort; a plan hasn’'t been outlined yet, but it wll be nade
soon.

She explained the last elenent of the report, which |ooked at
the new OCS enployee training program Training and Oientation
for New Enpl oyees (TONE). The training on information collection
was found to be too general and the curriculum was not specific.
Al t hough TONE does pronpte a holistic ook at OCS care, it tends
to be too focused on the legality of issues instead of famly-
oriented care. On the whole, the training is wunclear, too
general, and needs to be inproved.

2:12:54 PM

She said that the report also showed a too-vague relationship
between safety assessnent decision and the resulting safety
pl anning; the report recomends the adoption of the Safe
Famlies Act, which is what the federal governnent uses to
neasure efficacy. The federal government will cone to the state
in 2008 to evaluate the OCS, so the sanme foundation |ogic should
be used. The m ssion of safety planning should al so be nade nore
apparent in the curriculum and case nanagenent should be better
expl ai ned.

She said that the OCS has been working on these issues in the
past year and they have been steadily inproved with the help of
a TONE advisory group. The OCS is also utilizing information
from other states’ new worker training prograns to inprove its
own.

2:16:58 PM

M5. JACKSON t hanked the commttee again for its interest in the
OCS, which helps the office continually inprove itself.
Confidentiality is a major concern, but it shouldn't be a reason
for reduced or limted service. The OCS is also |ooking for ways
to better work with community partners and have open di scussions

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- March 28, 2007



in the spirit of inprovenent; there is lots of work to be done
on the office in the future.

2:18:57 PM

SENATOR ELTON said that he's not an expert on the OCS but thinks
the office is very inportant. He's pleased to see it taking the
advice of the reports, but he's bothered by the extent of the
issues facing the OCS because it wll limt their powers for
hel ping children. He asked how it would be possible for the OCS
to inprove itself without hiring nore staff.

2:21:12 PM

M5. JACKSON said that part of the dilemma is that funding too
many new positions would overwhel m the system existing workers
need to be retained and inproved nore than new workers need to
be recruited.

2:22: 31 PM

M5. SANDOVAL said that there are many things in the OCS that can
be inproved, nostly communication wth |ocal partners; the
culture of the organization needs to be inproved nost
i medi ately. Training can be a burden on the organization, so
retaining current staff is the nbst inportant issue currently.

SENATOR ELTON said that it seenms to him that staff burnout and
turnover are real problenms, caused by having staffers do too
much while being paid too little. He said that he doesn't
understand how better conmunication can happen wthout nore
personnel ; as the report showed, interest in the job isn't the
problem but rather the overwhelm ng work |oad. He suggested
giving people nore assistance in the offices so they feel |ess
overwhel ned in their jobs.

M5. JACKSON said that there are some positions open currently,
and those need to be filled first. Even wth wunlimted
resources, staff additions mght not be able to be put to
ef fective use.

SENATOR ELTON said that the tourism industry, for exanple, asks
for noney right away rather than waiting for better preparation.

2:27: 39 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2007



CHAIR DAVIS said that she understands both sides of the issue,
and agreed that the existing structure needs inprovenent before
new people are hired. The OCS feels that it has a lot of
pressure on it, and now with the reports it wll becone nore
prepared and ready for change. The agency is on the cusp of
positive change, and is noving in the right direction. Lots of
people in the agency feel that their jobs are inportant, and so
the agency has a lot to work with. She asked if the agency is
nmore prepared for the upcom ng federal assessnent than it was
for the previous assessnent in 2003.

M5. SANDOVAL replied that the OCS is better prepared and focused
now, even though there is room for inprovenent in famly
out cones.

2:31: 29 PM

SENATOR CONDERY asked for the differences in staff and frontline
wor ker s’ backgr ounds.

M5. SANDOVAL explained the difference in necessary degrees for
three different positions within the OCS

SENATOR CONDERY related a personal story of his staff's
experience with case workers, and asked if the OCS still offers
field experience opportunities.

M5. SANDOVAL replied that it does.

SENATOR CONDERY said that the OCS has a reputation of
inefficacy, but it still is a positive entity and people should
j udge for thensel ves.

2:35: 51 PM

CHAIR DAVIS said that there's a concern about overrepresentation
of mnorities in the system and asked what the office is doing
to change this.

M5. SANDOVAL said this issue is a huge priority for the OCS, and
that she thinks it's a relatively new issue to the social work
field. The office is learning new activities that | ook at racism

t hroughout the |eadership and front-line levels; it's a hard
subject, but the OCS is facing it head-on and is involving
tribal partners and all interested to be part of the cultura

sensitivity training advisory group.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2007



CHAIR DAVIS said that that's good, but she's nore concerned
about the prevention of abuse. She asked if there's any
prevention systemin the OCS for working with kids still living
at hone.

M5. SANDOVAL said that she's been trying to inprove this area
for the last 22 years, and it's her main priority. It's one of
the elenments of the new safety nodel, and distinguishing the
line between at-risk and unsafe environnents is inportant for
t he agency. Renoval from the hone should be a last resort for a
chi |l d.

2:41: 34 PM

CHAIR DAVIS asked if there are any options for inproving this
area through grants, and said that Ms. Sandoval could respond to
her later. She added that she is inpressed with the OCS s candor
in tal king about the report.

M5. SANDOVAL said that the OCS has been presenting the new
safety assessnment nodel and the results of the reports to
di fferent public agencies.

SENATOR COWDERY asked what percentage of abuse issues are
al cohol or drug-rel ated.

Ms. SANDOVAL said the nunber is huge, if not exact.
2:43:19 PM

SENATOR ELTON said he would like to know how long it takes to
fill an OCS position, and why it takes a particularly long tinmne.
He said his recollection is that the Al aska OCS has a higher
case | oad than other states.

CHAIR DAVIS thanked the OCS for its good work and efforts for
i mprovenent, and asked if there are any policy changes that need
to be nade.

M5. SANDOVAL said that she couldn't think of anything at the
time and that too nmuch can't be done in too short a period of
time. The agency needs to catch up on current issues before
maki ng new changes.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Davis adjourned the neeting at 2:46:21 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2007



SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 28, 2007



